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Jeffrey Saul Kravitz (SBN 186209) i .
Kravitz Law Office e mn /(/\
2310 J. Street, Suite A T R f,

Sacramento, Ca 95816

HIVEECR SRS BRI

Ph: 916-553-4072
Fax: 916-553-4074
KravitzLaw@aol.com SRR A

Attorneys for Plaintiff

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT _82
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

Roy WERBEL , individually and on CC%E @9 [} 4: 5 6 _ﬁ

behalf of all others similarly situated,
: COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF,
Plaintiff, * RESTITUTION AND DAMAGES
VvS. .

PEPSICO, INC., a North Carolina
corporation; and DOES 1 through 10,
inclusive,

Defendants.
' CLASS ACTION

: JURY TRIAL REQUESTED

Plaintiff Roy Werbel, by and through his attorneys, hereby complains and
alleges as follows:
Il. PARTIES

1. Roy Werbel (hereinafter “Plaintiff’), is an individual consumer who at all times

material hereto, was and is a resident of California. For purposes of diversity

jurisdiction, he is a “citizen” of California. He respectfully requests a jury trial.
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2. Defendant PepsiCo, Inc. (“PepsiCo”) is a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the North Carolina with its principal office located at 700 Anderson
Hill Road, Purchase, New York 10577. For diversity purposes, PepsiCo may be
considered to be a citizen of either North Carolina or New York. PepsiCo merged with
The Quaker Oats Company ("Quaker") in 2001, and Quaker is now a unit of PepsiCo.
Quaker’s products include “Cap’n Crunchg with Crunchberries” (“Product”). At all times
relevant hereto, PepsiCo was and is doing business in the county where this judicial
district is located.

3. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that, at all times herein
mentioned, the subsidiaries, affiliates and other related entities of PepsiCo were the
agents, servants and employees of PepsiCo, and at all times herein mentioned, each
was acting within the purpose and scope of said agency and employment, and PepsiCo
ratified and approved the acts of said agents and employees. Plaintiff also is informed
and believes and thereon alleges that at all times herein mentioned, the employees of
PepsiCo, its subsidiaries, affiliates and other related entities were the agents, servants
and employees of PepsiCo, and at all times herein mentioned, each was acting within
the purpose and scope of said agency and employment, and that PepsiCo ratified and
approved the acts of said agents and employees.

Il. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter presented by this
Complaint because it is a class action arising under the Class Action Fairness Act of
2005 (“CAFA”), Pub. L. No. 109-2, 119 Stat. 4 (2005), which explicitly provides for the
original jurisdiction of the Federal Courts of any class action in which any member of
the Plaintiff Class is a citizen of a state different from any defendant, and in which the
matter in controversy exceeds in the aggregate the sum of $5,000,000.00, exclusive of
interest and costs. Plaintiff alleges that the total claims of individual Class members in
this action are well in excess of $5,000,000 in the aggregate, exclusive of interest and

costs, as required by 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2), (5). The Plaintiff is a citizen of California,
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whereas, as set forth above, PepsiCo may be considered a citizen of either North
Carolina or New York. Therefore, diversity of citizenship exists under CAFA as required
by 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A). Furthermore, Plaintiff alleges that more than two-thirds of
all of the members of the proposed Plaintiff Class in the aggregate are citizens of a
state other than California, where this action is originally being filed, and that the total
number of members of the proposed Class is greater than 100, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1332(d)(5)(B).

5. Venue in this district is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because
Defendant conducts business within, may be found in, and is subject to personal
jurisdiction in this district. The original of the “Declaration of Jeffrey S. Kravitz,
Pursuant to Civil Code §1780(c) of the Consumer Legal Remedies Act, Civil Code
§§1750 et seq.” regarding venue under the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act is
filed as Exhibit “A” , and is incorporated herein by reference.

lll. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

6. All allegations in this Complaint are based on information and belief and/or
are likely to have evidentiary support after reasonable opportunity for further
investigation or discovery.

7. Whenever reference in this Complaint is made to any act or transaction of
PepsiCo, such allegation shall be deemed to mean that the principals, officers,
directors, employees, agents, and/or representatives of PepsiCo committed, knew of,
performed, authorized, ratified and/or directed such act or transaction on behalf of
PepsiCo while actively engaged in the scope of their duties.

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Defendant PepsiCo manufactures, markets, and promotes the Product
referenced above.

9. In addition to the use of the word “berries” in the Product name, the Product’s
principal display panel (“PDP”) - the portion of the Product box designed to face

consumers as they shop in a market aisle - features the Product’'s namesake, “Cap’n
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Crunch’ thrusting a spoonful of “Crunchberries” at the prospective buyer.

10. The Crunchberries are pieces of cereal in bright fruit colors, shaped to
resemble berries. Close inspection reveals that the Crunchberries on the PDP are not
really berries, but the colorful Crunchberries, combined with the “berry” in the Product
name, conveys only one message: that Cap’n Crunch is not all sugar and starch — it
contains redeeming fruit.

11. This message is supplemented and reinforced by marketing which
represents, in a matter-of-fact manner. “Crunch Berries is a combination of Crunch
biscuits and colorful red, purple, teal and green berries” (Emphasis added).

12. There can be no other reason for the emphasis on berries than to lead
consumers to believe the Product is made with real fruit content. Neither PepsiCo nor
Quaker is a novice when it comes to marketing.

13. In truth, however, the Product contains no actual berries of any kind. If the
consumer takes the box from the shelf and examines the fine print of the ingredient list,
he or He will discover that the only fruit content is a touch of strawberry fruit
concentrate — twelfth in order on the ingredient list, just after partially hydrogenated
soybean oil and “natural and artificial flavors,” and just before malic acid.

14. Natural flavoring provides no nutritional value.! The rest of the ingredients
are: corn flour, sugar, oat flour, brown sugar, coconut oil, salt, sodium citrate, nonfat dry
milk, whey, niacinamide, reduced iron, zinc oxide, yellow 5, red 40, mono and
diglycerides, yellow 6, blue 1, thiamin mononitrate, pyridoxine hydrochloride, BHT,
riboflavin and folic acid. True and correct representations of the Product labeling and
marketing copy are attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and incorporated by reference
herein.

15. Plaintiff contends that Defendant’s marketing of the Product in this manner is

deceptive and likely to mislead and deceive a “reasonable consumer” such as himself

"' 21 CFR § 101.22(a)(3). “The term natural {lavor or natural flavoring means the essential oil...or
fermentation products thereof, whose significant function in food is flavoring rather than nutritional.”
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[ -/

in violation of California statutes and common law causes of action that parallel, and do
not conflict with, the labeling requirements established by the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act (‘FDCA”).2 See California’s Sherman Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Law.®

16. During the past four years, Plaintiff, at various times purchased the Product,
in large part because he had been exposed to advertising and representations of
PepsiCo and Quaker as set forth above. He was misled by the packaging and
marketing, which by design and intent convey the message that the Product contains
real fruit. He trusted the Quaker label because of the company’s long history of
producing other wholesome breakfast cereals

17. However, Plaintiff has since learned that many popular foods and beverages
are marketed as if they are made with fruit, but actually contain little or no fruit at all.
The Strategic Alliance for Healthy Food and Activity Environments (hereinafter
“Strategic Alliance”) has published the results of a study examining the ingredients of
widely advertised foods with references to fruit on the packaging. A true and correct
copy of the study, annotated to highlight references to the Product, is attached hereto
as Exhibit “C” and incorporated by reference.

18. The study concluded, among other things, that despite advertising and
packaging that suggests the presence of fruit, more than half of the food products
studied - including the Product - contain no fruit at all. The study concluded that there
is reason to be concerned that current packaging labels and advertising are misleading
consumers about the nutritional value of some of the most popular foods and snacks.

19. Plaintiff relied on PepsiCo’s marketing representations. Had he known that

“Cap’n Crunchg with Crunchberries” contained no fruit, He would not have purchased it.

* Codified at 21 U.S.C. §§ 301, et seq., with implementing regulations found at 21 C.F.R. §§ 1.1, et seq.

* Cal. Health and Safety Code §§ 109875 et seq. (The FDCA labeling regulations also have been
incorporated into California law by reference. Califorma Section 110100 of the Calfornia Health and
Safety Code provides: “All food labeling regulations and any amendments to those regulations adopted
pursuant to the federal act, in effect on January 1, 1993, or adopted on or after that date shall be the food
labeling regulations of this state.”)
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o -’

In doing so, he was deprived of the benefit of his bargain; the deceptive
representations described above cost him money because he received a Product of
less value than he paid for it.

20. The defendant is aware of the potential for members of the public to be
misled about the existence of natural berries in their product and have taken no steps
to protect the public. On December 4, 1967, the examining attorney from the US Patent
and Trademark Office sent to the defendant a letter stating that the trademark
application for Crunch Berries could not be approved because:

The word BERRIES is considered either merely descriptive or deceptively
misdescriptive of the good here and should be disclaimed apart from the mark shown.

A copy of the PTO document is attached here as exhibit “D”.

V. CLASS ALLEGATIONS

21. Pursuant to California Civil Code § 1781, California Code of Civil Procedure
§ 382, and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23, Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of
himself and all other California consumers who purchased the Product during the class
period, which is defined as the four years preceding the filing of this action. The
practices and omissions of PepsiCo were applied uniformly to all members of the
Class, so that the questions of law and fact are common to all members of the Class.
All putative Class members were and are similarly affected by having purchased and
used the above-mentioned Product and the relief sought herein is for the benefit of
Plaintiff and members of the putative class.

22. Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that the Plaintiff
Class is so numerous that joinder of all members would be impracticable. Based on the
annual sales of the Product and the popularity of the Product, it is apparent that the
number of consumers of the Product, both nationwide and in California alone would at
least be in the many tens of thousands, thereby making joinder impossible.

23. Questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff Class and the subclasses

exist that predominate over questions affecting only individual members, including, inter
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alia, the following:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Whether Defendant’'s practices and representations made in connection
with the advertising, marketing, promotion, labeling and sales of the
Product as set forth herein were deceptive, unlawful or unfair in any
respect, thereby violating California's Unfair Competition Law (“UCL),
California Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200 et seq.;

Whether Defendant’s practices and representations made in connection
with the advertising, marketing, promotion, labeling and sales of the
Product as set forth herein were deceptive in any respect, thereby
violating California's False Advertising Law (“FAL”"), California Bus. &
Prof. Code § 17500 et seq.;

Whether Defendant’s practices and representations made in connection
with the advertising, marketing, promotion, labeling and sales of the
Product as set forth herein were deceptive and/or misleading in any
respect;

Whether Defendant breached any implied or express warranties in
connection with the practices and representations made in the
advertising, marketing, promotion, labeling and sales of the Product as
set forth herein, at the expense of and to the detriment of Plaintiff and
Class members;

Whether Defendant violated Civil Code §1770(a)(5) et seq. (‘CLRA") by
the practices and representations made in connection with the
advertising, marketing, promotion, labeling and sales of the Product as
set forth herein; and

Whether Defendant's conduct as set forth herein injured consumers, and

if so, the extent of the injury.

24. The claims asserted by Plaintiff in this action are typical of the claims of the

members of the Plaintiff Class and all subclasses as described herein, the claims arise
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from the same course of conduct by PepsiCo, and the relief sought is common.

25. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the
members of the Plaintiff Class and all subclasses. Plaintiff has retained competent
counsel.

26. Certification of this class action is appropriate under FRCP 23(b) and
California Code of Civil Procedure § 382, and California Civil Code § 1781, because
the questions of law or fact common to the respective Class members predominate
over questions of law or fact affecting only individual members. This predominance
makes class litigation superior to any other method available for the fair and efficient
adjudication of these claims. Absent a class action, it would be highly unlikely that the
representative Plaintiff or any other Class member would be able to protect their own
interests, because the cost of litigation through individual lawsuits might exceed
expected recovery. Certification also is appropriate because PepsiCo acted or refused
to act on grounds generally applicable to the Class, thereby making appropriate final
injunctive relief with respect to the Class as a whole. Further, given the large number of
consumers of the Product, allowing individual actions to proceed in lieu of a class
action would run the risk of yielding inconsistent and conflicting adjudications.

27. A class action is a fair and appropriate method for the adjudication of the
controversy, in that it will permit a large nhumber of claims to be resolved in a single
forum simultaneously, efficiently, and without the unnecessary hardship that would
result from the prosecution of numerous individual actions and the duplication of
discovery, effort, expense and burden on the courts that such individual actions would
engender. The benefits of proceeding as a class action, including providing a method
for obtaining redress for claims that it would not be practicable to pursue individually,
outweigh any difficulties that might be argued with regard to the management of this

class action.
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VI. FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq.)

28. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

29. This cause of action is brought on behalf of Plaintiff and members of the
general public pursuant to California Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200, et seq., which
provides that "unfair competition shall mean and include any unlawful, unfair or
deceptive business act or practice and unfair, deceptive, untrue or misleading
advertising and any act prohibited by Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 17500) as
Part 3 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code."

30. Plaintiff alleges that PepsiCo committed the unlawful, unfair, and deceptive
practices set forth above in this Complaint.

31. These practices offend public policy, are unconscionable, are oppressive
and unscrupulous, and cause substantial injury to consumers.

32. The acts and concealment of material facts, as described in this First
Amended Complaint, have a capacity, tendency or likelihood to deceive or confuse the
“‘reasonable consumer” regarding the contents and nutritional value of the Product.

33. Plaintiff alleges that PepsiCo committed an unfair business act or practice as
set forth above. The utility of PepsiCo’s misleading and/or deceptive advertising,
promotion, labeling and/or marketing for the purpose of selling the Product is negligible,
if any, when weighed against the extent of harm to the general public, Plaintiff and
Class members. The harmful impact upon members of the general public and the Class
who were and are misled and deceived with respect to PepsiCo’s advertising,
promotion, marketing and labeling of the Product far outweighs any reasons or
justifications by PepsiCo for engaging in these practices. As alleged in this First
Amended Complaint, PepsiCo had an improper motive (profit over truthful advertising,
promotion, labeling and marketing) in misrepresenting and/or omitting the nature of the

Product in its advertising, promotion, marketing and labeling. These deceptive and
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misleading practices were and are under the sole control of PepsiCo, and they were
deceptively hidden from members of the general public in PepsiCo’s advertising,
promotion, marketing and labeling of the Product.

34. As a purchaser of the Product, and as a member of the general public in
California who has been injured by PepsiCo’s unlawful and/or unfair practices, Plaintiff
is entitled to and does bring this class action seeking all available remedies under
California’s Unfair Competition Law, including declaratory and injunctive relief and
restitution, as well as attorneys’ fees and costs.

35. PepsiCo committed a deceptive act or practice by making written and oral
material representations and omissions as set forth above that have a capacity,
tendency, or likelihood to deceive or confuse a reasonable consumer as to the
Product’s actual nature, as described above.

36. The violations of the CLRA, set forth in detail below, constitute a predicate
violation of the UCL's “unlawful prong,” and substantiate the deception inherent in the
representations made by PepsiCo.

37. The unfair, deceptive and/or unlawful acts and practices of PepsiCo, as
alleged in this Complaint, present a threat to members of the general public in that
PepsiCo is able to carry on this scheme of misrepresentation and omission without
consequence.

38. Piaintiff alleges that PepsiCo continues these unfair, deceptive and/or
unlawful business practices described herein.

39. PepsiCo’'s acts, misrepresentations, concealment of material facts, and
failures to disclose as alleged in this Complaint, constitute unfair, deceptive and/or
unlawful business practices within the meaning of the California Bus. & Prof. Code §
17200, et seq. Plaintiff and members of the general public were, and are likely to be
deceived by PepsiCo’s scheme to misrepresent the fruit content of the Product, as
alleged in this Complaint.

40. Pursuant to California Bus. & Prof. Code § 17203, Plaintiff, on behalf of
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himself and members of the general public, seeks an order of this Court:

(@) Enjoining PepsiCo from continuing to engage, use, or employ any
business practice found by this Court to be unfair, deceptive and/or
unlawful under the UCL; and

(b) Restoring all monies that may have been acquired by PepsiCo as a resuit
of such unlawful, unfair, or deceptive act or practices.

41. Plaintiff and members of the general public may be irreparably harmed
and/or denied an effective and complete remedy if such an order is not granted. The
unfair, deceptive and/or unlawful acts and practices of PepsiCo, as described above,
present a serious threat to Plaintiff and members of the general public.

42. As a result of PepsiCo’s violation of the UCL, Plaintiff and the Class are
entitled to restitution for out-of-pocket expenses and economic harm suffered.

43. Pursuant to Civil Code § 3287(a), Plaintiff and the Class are further entitled
to pre-judgment interest as a direct and proximate result of PepsiCo's wrongful
conduct. The amount of damages suffered by Plaintiff and the Class as a result of said
acts is a sum certain and capable of calculation and Plaintiff and Class members are
entitled to interest in an amount to be set forth according to proof.

VIl. SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §17500, et seq.)

44, Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

45. In violation of California Bus & Prof. Code § 17500, PepsiCo has
disseminated, or caused to be disseminated, deceptive and misleading statements in
advertisements, promotion labeling and/or marketing for the Product as set forth above.

46. PepsiCo’s representations in the advertisements, promotions, labeling
and/or marketing of the Product are deceptive and misleading because the Product
contains only nominal fruit content.

47. Plaintiff alleges that PepsiCo continues to disseminate, or cause to be
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disseminated, the deceptive and misleading representations described herein.

48. PepsiCo is disseminating representations about the Product, which by their
very nature are deceptive and misleading within the meaning of California Bus. & Prof.
Code §17500, et seq. Such representations are likely to deceive a reasonable
consumer and present a continuing threat to the general public; they will continue to
mislead consumers into purchasing the Product on deceptive premises. The violations
of the CLRA, set forth in detail below, constitute a predicate violation of the FAL as
alleged herein and substantiate the deception inherent in the representations made by
PepsiCo.

49. In making and disseminating the representations alleged herein, PepsiCo
knew or should have known that they were deceptive and misleading, and it acted in
violation of California Bus. & Prof. Code § 17500, et seq.

50. As a direct and proximate result of PepsiCo’s wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and
the Class members have suffered substantial monetary and non-monetary damage.
Pursuant to California Business and Professions Code § 17535, Plaintiff, on behalf of
themselves and members of the general public, seek an order of this Court:

(a) Enjoining PepsiCo from continuing to engage, use, or employ any

business practice this Court finds to be in violation of the FAL; and

(b) Restoring all monies that may have been acquired by means of

PepsiCo's deceptive and misleading statements described herein.

51. If PepsiCo’s conduct is not enjoined, Plaintiff and the members of the Class
will continue to be damaged by PepsiCo’s deceptive and misleading advertising.

52. Pursuant to Civil Code § 3287(a), Plaintiff and members of the Class are
further entitled to pre-judgment interest as a direct and proximate result of PepsiCo’s
wrongful conduct. The amount of funds paid by Plaintiff and Class members as a result
of said acts was a sum certain and capable of calculation, and Plaintiff and Class

members are entitled to interest in an amount to be set forth according to proof.
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VIil. THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Intentional Misrepresentation)

53. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

54. PepsiCo has represented to the public, including Plaintiff, by packaging,
advertising, labeling and other means that the Product has characteristics, ingredients,
and qualities that it does not have, as set forth in detail above and incorporated herein.
Plaintiff and each Class member were exposed to these representations each time they
purchased the Product at the point of sale for each purchase of the Product.

55. PepsiCo’s representations were deceptive in that the Product contains no
fruit content of any nutritional value.

56. At the time PepsiCo made the representations herein alleged, PepsiCo knew
the representations were deceptive.

57. PepsiCo intentionally made the representations above for the purpose of
deceiving Plaintiff and Class members into purchasing a product that is not what it is
represented to be, thereby depriving them of the benefit of their bargain.

58. Plaintiff and Class members reasonably relied upon Defendant's
representations as set forth above, because they believed Defendant and Quaker to be
reputable companies.

59. As a proximate result of these acts, Plaintiff and other consumers were
induced to spend an amount of money to be determined at trial on the Product; the
deceptive representations described above cost them money because they received a
Product of less value than they paid for it, a product they would not had purchased but
for the misrepresentations.

60. Plaintiff and other consumers, in purchasing, using, and consuming the
Product as herein alleged, relied upon PepsiCo’s above representations, all to their
damage as hereinabove alleged. In doing the things aforementioned, PepsiCo was

guilty of malice, oppression, and fraud, and Plaintiff and Class members are, therefore,
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entitled to recover exemplary or punitive damages.

IX. FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Express Warranty)

61. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

62. Defendant made and continues to make express warranties for the Product
as described in detail above and incorporated herein, including but not limited to the
statement that the Product contains berries.

63. As stated herein, the Product contains only nominal fruit content of no
nutritional value. This constitutes a breach of express warranties based on all laws that
support the express warranty claims by Plaintiff and other Class members. These laws
include but are not limited to California Common Law, the California Uniform
Commercial Code and California Civil Code section 1790 et seq. (California’s Song-
Beverly Act).

64. The failure of the Product to be as expressly warranted by Defendant has
caused Plaintiff and Class members damages as herein described, in that, among
other things, they were induced to spend an amount of money to be determined at trial
on the Product; the breach of express warranties described above cost them money
because they received a Product of less value than they paid for it, a product they
woulld not had purchased but for the express warranties.

65. Plaintiff gave timely notice to Defendant of this breach on behalf of
themselves and all members of Plaintiff Classes either directly, or indirectly, including
upon the filing of the original complaint and the mailing of the CLRA notice letter
described below. Plaintiff could not return the Product to Defendant for correction as

the defect was irreparable.
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X. FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Implied Warranty)

66. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in
each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

67. PepsiCo represented to consumers, including Plaintiff and other Class
members, by packaging, advertising, labeling and other means described in detail
above and incorporated herein, that the Product was a substantially fruit-based product
deriving nutritional value from fruit.

68. PepsiCo is a merchant of food products, and knew the qualities sought in the
Product by Plaintiff and Class members; there was in the sale of the Product an implied
warranty that the goods were merchantable and fit for the purpose they were sought.

69. PepsiCo breached the warranties implied in the contract for sale of the
Product as it does not have the characteristics, qualities, and uses represented by
Defendant and sought by Plaintiff and Class members. In fact, the Product contains
only nominal fruit content of no nutritional value, as set forth above.

70. As a result thereof, Plaintiff and other consumers did not receive goods as
impliedly warranted by PepsiCo.

71. As a proximate result of these breaches of warranty by PepsiCo, Plaintiff and
Class members suffered damages in an amount to be determined at trial, in that,
among other things, they were induced to spend an amount of money on the Product;
the breach of implied warranties described above cost them money because they
received a Product of less value than they paid for it, a product they would not had
purchased but for the express warranties.

Xl. SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
(Consumers Legal Remedies Act)

72. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in

each of the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.

73. This cause of action is brought pursuant to the CLRA.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE
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74. Plaintiff and each member of the Class are “consumers” within the meaning
of Civil Code §1761(d).

75. The purchases of the Product by Plaintiff and each member of the Class
were and are “transactions” within the meaning of Civil Code §1761(e).

76. PepsiCo’s marketing, promotion, and sales of the Product within California,
as alleged herein, violated and continues to violate the CLRA in at least the following
respects as set forth in detail above:

(a) In violation of Civii Code §1770(a)(2), PepsiCo misrepresented the

composition or contents of the Product;

(b) In violation of Civil Code §1770(a)(5), PepsiCo represented that the
Product has characteristics, ingredients, uses, and benefits which it does
not have;

(c) In violation of Civii Code §1770(a)(7), PepsiCo represented that the
Product is of a particular standard, quality, or grade, which it is not; and

(d) In violation of Civil Code §1770(a)(9), PepsiCo advertised the Product
with an intent not to sell the Product as advertised.

77. Plaintiff seeks and is entitled to equitable relief in the form of an order:

(@) Enjoining PepsiCo from continuing to engage in any practice determined
by this Court to violate the CLRA,;

(b) Requiring PepsiCo to make full restitution of all monies wrongfully
obtained as a result of the conduct described above;

(¢ Requiring PepsiCo to disgorge all ill-gotten gains flowing from the conduct
described above; and

(d) Enjoining PepsiCo from such deceptive business practices in the future.

78. Pursuant to the requirements of the CLRA, Plaintiff, by and through counsel,
notified PepsiCo in writing of the particular violations of Section 1770 of the CLRA and
demanded certain corrective actions. Plaintiff sent that notice by certified mail, return-

receipt requested. PepsiCo failed to respond to Plaintiffs demand within thirty days of
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that letter, and pursuant to section 1782 of the CLRA, Plaintiff amends this pleading to
request statutory damages, actual damages, plus punitive damages, interest and
attorneys’ fees.

79. Regardless of an award of damages, however, Plaintiff also seeks and is
entitled to, pursuant to Section 1780(a)(2) of the CLRA, an order for the equitable relief
described above, as well as costs, attorney’s fees and any other relief which the Court
deems proper.

Xil. PRAYER FOR RELIEF
(AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS)

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated,
and for members of the general public, prays for relief as follows:

1. For an order certifying that this action may be maintained as a class action.

2. For an award of equitable relief:

(@) Enjoining Defendant from engaging in acts and/or practices
determined by this Court to be in violation of the UCL, the FAL
and/or the CLRA;

(b) Requiring Defendant to make full restitution of all monies obtained
as a result of any act and/or practice determined by this Court to
be in violation of the UCL, the FAL and/or the CLRA; and

(c) Requiring Defendant to disgorge all ill-gotten gains flowing from
any act and/or practice determined by this Court to be in violation
of the UCL, the FAL and/or the CLRA.

3. For actual and punitive damages under the CLRA in an amount to be proven
at trial, including any damages as may be provided for by statute.

4. For an award of attorney’s fees pursuant to, inter alia, Section 1780(d) of the
CLRA and Code of Civil Procedure § 1021.5.

5. For actual damages in an amount to be determined at trial for the Third,

Fourth, and Fifth Causes of Action.
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6. For punitive damages in an amount to be determined at trial for the Third
Cause of Action.
7. For an award of costs and any other relief the Court might deem appropriate.

8. For pre- and post-judgment interest on any amounts awarded.
Pursuant to FRCP 38 a Jury Trial is demanded.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

KRAVITZ LAW OFFIC

Dated: September 22, 2009
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Declaration Re: Cal. Civil Code § 1780 (c)
I, Jeffrey S. Kravitz do hereby declare:

1. | am an attorney at law duly admitted to practice before this Court and
before all the Courts of the State of California. | am the attorney of record for the Plaintiff
in this case. The matters stated herein are true to my own knowledge, except as to
those matters stated as to information and belief and to those matters, | believe them to
be true. If call upon a could and will competently testify to the matters herein.

2. California Civil Code § 1780 (c) provides that a plaintiff seeking to bring a
claim under section 1780 (a) of the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act, such as
in this case may commence that action “in the county in which the person against whom
it is brought resides, has his or principal place of business, or is doing business, or in
the county where the transaction or any substantial portion thereof occurred.”

3. Accordingly, this judicial District is a proper venue in which to bring this
action as the defendant at all relevant times in this action was and/or is “doing business”
within the County of this district by marketing, advertising and selling the subject product

of this action, and/or other of their products within said County.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States and California that

the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed on September 21, 2009 in Sacramento California

JEFFREY/S. VITZ

Exhibit A 1

AN
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Capn Crurnch®

Quaker Cap'n Crunch ® was introduced in 1963 and has become
one of the most successful pre-sweet readv-to-eat cereals ever
launched. Today. Cap'n Crunch is the #1 pre-sweetened kids cereal
in the U.S.

Cap'n Crunch has a unique, indescribable taste. with deliciously
crunchy. sweet biscuits both kids and adults love. Cap'n Crunch is
also available in several other delicious varieties. Crunch Berries is ‘
a combination of Crunch biscuits and colorful red, purple, teal and et

green berries. Peanut Butter Crunch has o sweet peanut butter tlavor

along with the brand's trademark crunchy texture. The newest cereal in the line 1s Oops! ChocoDonuts. a
chocolate donut flavored and shaped cereal with multi-colored sprinkies.

learm more albout IZap o ronchiE!
Visit the Cap'n Crunch® web site:

O hupr waww capnerunchaoos

Varieties/Flavors:

D Cap'n Crunch® (8oz, 120z. 160z. 220/}

O Cap'n Crunch® Crunchberries (150z. 210z)

O Cap'n Crunch® Peanut Butter Crunch |50z, 20.70z)
0 Cap'n Crunch® Oops! ChocoDonuts ( i30z)

Availability:
O Cap'n Crunch is available throughout the United States and Canada.

o _ B2

http://www.quakeroats.com/qtb OurBrands/BrandDetail.ctm?BrandiD=1 4/18:2007
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265 29th Street
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510.444.7738
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www. preventioninstitute.org
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WHERE’S THE FRUIT?

This doc ment was presared Dy = ~vennho stifule
Principc authors.

Lesiie M keisen, R, mP-

Caithin mierio. 89
Virginic e, smpr

Caroi € ac, s

€ Januw v 2007

Preventior nstiture 1s o nonprofir, nationa: center dedicated to improving commu-
nity health and well-being by building momenrum +o: effective primary prevention.
Primary prevention means taking action ¢ build resiiience and to prevent prob-
lems befoie they occur. The Institutes work i1s characterized by a strong commit-
ment to community participation and promotion of equitable health outcomes
among alii social and economic groups. Since its tfounding in 1997 the organiza-
tion has focused on injury and violence prevention, - affic safety, health disparities,
nutrition and physical activity. and youth deveiopmen:  This, and other Preventior
Institute documents, are availabie af no cos™ on ou: website.

Prevention

Purting EntGs

Uil S0 SOMMMRGMTy L D
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WHERE’'S THE FRUIT?

INTRODUCTION

Surveve of childrens tood habirs reveal b oosturbing
rend over the Last 6H vears, Up to 80% ot todie - voung
children have diets thar are conadered “pocs ™ or i
need of unprovement”™ ‘Nestle, 20061, Chiidren are
consunmng less than the datly recommended servings
of frutts. vegetables and whole grams, while conwnmmg
excess calones i the torm of added sugars ind ran
(TOM. 20065, The appearance ot Tvpe [ diabyeres fror-
merly: known as adult-onser diabetes: - adokeseents

and vounger children has sounded an alarm around the

country that ensurmyg o good diet aand reguia: plwsical
acovieys for children s i pubhe ealth priors Estab-
Ishing good dietary habies 1 childhood cromores
healdhy gronveh and developmenr and help- prevent
diaberes. cardrovascular disease and cancer  oadthood.

Parents are concerned abour ther chaldre: - health

rer cnil-

and oy ro make healthtul tood chorees ror «
drens trequentlv operating under ame ana manend
pressures. Thev scan the supermarket asles, oren wieh
children m tow looking tor affordable. tisee an nuem-
nous 1tens 1o feed thew tonthes Todavs loe super-

markers mav display as many . 00000 proaucs, so

these chowees can be daunning (Nestle. 2006, 1 mror-
mation contaned on product packages 15 one - uree ol
mrormaton for these chotces, augmented by iarkenng
messages eticotmtered betore enterig the supesmarkert.

Parents are not the only targers of these arketing
messages. Cluldren are seen as prome markens o argets
tor therr direct purchasing povwer. intluence on. parental
and howseholds purchases. and to culovate carne brand

lovalev thae will mfluence thewr purchases as aaules, An

estintated Neowifion pesocear s spent for toos and

boverage markenng o cnidren and vouth i the Lme
e States TONE 2000650 1 s amounts to more than N

mithion spent overy hour e every dave The majonoy ot

these tood wd beverage products are high i sugar. saie.
tie and calories amd low e nutmentss (TOM. 2006
Arter bamg exposed to tarkenng messages. children
i ask therr parenes to purchase these products ac the
supermarket. o0 et cihnddren mtluence houschold
purchase decsions atan cstimated value of 3300 billhon
annuallv tor 20 T4 vea bids (TOM. 2006

fooorder ¢ anaer clukven, adverosmyg and packages
terd to be dvnaime brghir colored and rrequentliy i
Chude a brandes nvoonad haraceer or tamithar childrens
ot Whale taive and i are the primary appeals o
children, good nutrnon = valued by parents. Although
speciine healthe - anns ane natrent coneent clams e
reculated by the Food ana Drug Admnnstranon (FDA -
there are sall e phirases tood and beverage manuta

rurers malade ot packages that potennally mislead par-
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ents. Terms such as ligh-cnergy lovw-fat multe-aram. all
natural. or tru-tlavored connote o healthy g and
regularh appear on mghlv-advernsed produc such as
breakrast cereals. truir drinks and childrens ~iacks. It
requires sone working knowledae of nuemtor o read
the mgredients st and nuoriton facts panel + - realhize
these products are trequentdy high i added sveeteners
and contam very hiede ot the whole grams. nuies and
vegetables and low-tar dary products vecomn nded by
the US Drctary Guidelies.,

Parents may have ditficulee makmg healey - horees
tor their children because the advernsmg ane packag-
g does not clearly represent the produces mrents,

This study rocuses an one aspect of this parcnial chal-

lenge—products linked widh oo via preture or rei-
erences to frue - the product name or phrase - on the
Jabel Frune v ahealthy rood tor snacks and vcalonie.
rich m dietary fiber. vitanums and mmerals. ad chil-
dren need @ recommended two o four serigs per
dav TAAPR 200105, The purpose of thiy st was to
deternune whether mdications of fruit on the packag-
mg of the most heavilv markered producrs te . hildren
reprosented actual frure m the product. W ise caleu-
lated the proporuon ot sugar m these producs. as one

proxy for the overall natrinonal value,

METHODS
W uned the st of brands maluded o Kaser
Fanmlv Foundanon™ recent studss /iy Clin Dlay

Adverganung and the Online Markenng of Food o hildren
that were identtied as the top-spending childrens rood
adverasers on TV {Moore, 2006 Ninetv-v - brand-
name products were dennfied by othe Kase Fanly
Foundaton studvy. grouped according to toor atego-
vies. We excluded 26 atems tronm our study e ex-
cluded 1eems included brand-name products st clear-
v did not contan frute (e Pringles. Do, Krate
Macaront & Cheesesand Coca-Colay, We sl oxclud-
ed restaurants snice we based our study o oroduers
that are avatlable m supernarker.

Uhe remannng 70 branded products were sicduded
m the studvs We visiced o local grocery stors md re-

viewed the packagiug tor che 7rotems and enntied

the brands that contanes words and mmages on the
package relatedt oo e andsor e mgredieness ¢
rhe 70 branded products we reviewed. 37 had rerer
chives to i o the packagmg.

[hese 37 products were the focus of our study: W
used the mgredient hst re determine whether the iem
contamed frune dhe rorm of che froe and the ovpes or
sugar n the product. The percentage of calories rron:
sugars was ceuiaced tor el produce based on o
nagon provided on the Numuoon Faers label and we
reviewed the gedicnt panel isee box below o
whenare all the added sweeteners. For produces rhat
comtamed froe e contacted the manutacturers to
fearn how much e was contaned mna servmg, The
wanutacturer- onsidered the actual amoune of mrune
imgredients usea o be s onmdental gproprictany: mior-
navon. Thererore we were not able to report o the
amount ot frur contamed mothe products. W alse:
evanted the wererence s o rwe ane the packages.

which metudes both words and pretures.

FOOD LABELS FOR TWO STUDY BRANDS

ghtec:  oold

SUGALS (ires h:0F

Apple Cinnamon Cheenos: #hoi:
sugar. brown sugar e oo

SLLana o

ST it

ST yaot

Strawberry Splash Yopiat Go-Gurt Yogurt:

crn & milic sugar, high frue-

modifies corn staror

LATLTEE Dy ¢

t0se corn syrug

anm CQIgen

L0sher ¢

DROsSpNaiE NoTura g
nrtficion oD DOIAssi
TR TarraUe

v #AU olue #
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TABLE 1. FRUIT CONTENT BY BRANL

Category # of Products % ot "otal Products Brands
1SRGy B
Appie
Dow
v e Care e Beieeo Appie S0
wiar: .
Huns (Stron
1002 z %
Mo P o ~8 Juice Drink
Irink
“irng Bo -
“rogucts oo
No Frui o k Jeverages Mtk ane
— e 7 0 Fooa Products 4 mieaas, Ber
+ Captain Cruncn with Crungrs
GLStrownersy Expiosiorns
RESULTS Sugar Conten:

Fruit Content
We sorted the 37 products mto four regories
based on the vpe of fruie ingredient they contuned:
1. Fruit: mcludimg truic and frne rom conc nrare
2. 100% Fruit Juice
3. Minimal Fruit Juice: drinks contammn. 2-10"
rue quice o brands contuned 11-97 quice.
products continmg fruit juice
4. No Fruit: mcluding products with no noan wath
onlv natural frure flavors Jwhich have no mrioon-
al value 2 TCERIOT22)]. or frune juiee conn cnrate
nwhich 1w classitied as an added sweerener USD-
HHS. 20055,
Ten products {271 contamed frnt and a0 G
contamed 100% fruit juice. The remammg 25 products
1677 contamed no or nunnal e fable o sonimna-

r1zes the results.

Most of the products Bad at deasr two  forns ot
addied sugars suallv g uctose corn sveup corn
swrup and sugae e the Fruit categorys there was
wide range of porcentag. of calories from sugar, with
Eooo Wattles having e

Siouckers Jun having the mghest Froae juice s high m

lowest percentage ana

naturally occurrng sugas . and the 100% Juice pro-
ducts averages 5970 or caiories from sugars The e
Jrimks ni the Minimal Frait category contuned igh
FPLCTON 0TI o and et concentrates and three ot

the rour producs nad e ot the cadories rom suga

100% FRUIT JUICE 5 ner v o s

HG
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PERCENTAGE OF CALORIES FROM SUGAR

Category Range (%0} Meaiun (Yo
Frue 10 proaudts. 4G
T00% Frup juice 12 prociucts <6-97

rMuumal B 16 proguas

20 1% suice 14 progucts

Fooa .2 produdsi

No Frge 19 sroauds

No Fruit products generallv had two or more rormis
of added sugars in the mgredienr st meluaimg ngh

fructose corn svrup.

The Packaging

Manv of the toods mthis scudv had brigndy col-
ored packages contamning mages ot ruie and o
words related to fruies regardless of the actua oncent
of frint mgredients.

Ot the 19 products that contimed no s sngredi-
ents 12 made two reterences to fruit six hac one ret-

crence to frut and one had three reterence o e

Reterences to fruie included: pictures ot fruis use of

the word “troe”™ or e e the prodo.  name
and-or deseripnion, advernsug Crraie tlavor on the
package. and usmy the name ot e o des ibe the
products tlavor g.es Usmawberny kit vocare and
“wild chermy™ Titesavers.

For exaple. the box tor Berry Berry Kin - real uses
an uage of 4 cluster o several
tvpes of rut above the otter ™1
i Kix. the words "Nl Fru
Flavors and a photo o i large
spoonful ot the cere. which
mcludes clusters that Lopear o
be raspberries and blacsberries,
The hst of mgredient re-veals

that ther. are no trun mgredi-

ents s produer bosides nat-

ural frure tlavors, which. as noced above, have - nuon-
nonad value.

Hi-Cx Boppoi” Straieberry Dok boxes shov images

ot whole strawberries skimming above o veam ot

ruchsia colored liqud and use the phrase “ride with

PERCENTAGE OF CALORIES FROM
SUGAR FOR SELECTED PRODUCT TYPES

_ategory Range (%]  Average (%]
aas Y 32-50 o
i
b ¢ e 10 Uh

real e juice on the package, The Numoon Faces
panel states rive the beverage woonly 107G frunt e
ad g tructose corn wrup and sugar are Iisted
berore the juice mgrediens. Caprr Sin. also teacures
PICRICS OF SR OUTTICS Doating ey  streanti, and i
cludes the statements AL Natural” “Sorawberrs ™
farge vellow ana red nunhicheed texe “Soawberry Fa-
vored Juiee Blena appears m much sialler. black ict-
ter~. The phrase 78 Brant huiee” onlv appears an the
rop or the Numnon Faces panel on dhe side o the box
Fhree trun shack products—/{or my e foor frag
Rodi=tipsand e Cosfiers
Al soate CSawberny
larue feteers o the label and
the phrase "R Flavored
Stnacks. Peas o wape

rom  concentrate are e

st mgrediens sor bl
these produces Yoo i

abvence of dictay nber, e

hsomg o sugar and - orn
svrup as the second and third mgredients, and the awer-
age S0t calories mom sazar imply there wovery hieede

roeanr e i e producs

DISCUSSION

W rouna tha earh swo=thieds of Inghiv-adver-
st children ™ wood products with unages or references
Foorrt on the package - cncned hitde or no e ana
woere bigh i sades swecreners, The packages gl
[ parent s nelieve ey are 1 headthier opoon o
ther children. sonen mam do noc actuallv deliver am

ol the nutrmmona benetirs of whole frute. Wieh the
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exception of a4 tew produces, children are not b netitig
nueriionally trom these highlv-advertsed proaucts,

Onlv ewo our of the six beverages m the study con-
tined 1060% trie juice. The remaming fowr sroducts
were priunartdy water and added sweeteners, w noted
above. without a carerul reading ot detmled ummon
paniels on the side of the package. 1018 not veadhly ap-
parent that these products barely contam e e
These products are calorie vehicles wathour e -
nonal benetits. and there s a growing body o rescarch
that sweetened beverage consumption s ockited
with excess werght gain m cnldren (Lodwic 2007
One recent study found thar iow-mcome preschool
children, who were alreads at risk to be ove mweighe
were twice s likelv to become overwerghr vith the
consumption ot sweetened beverages (includiie drinks
such as vitanmn C-contamimg, juices. other e es. truit
drinks. and soday (Welsh, 2005,

Most of the tood products i dhis stady o ore high
n added sweeteners, Adding sugar s a cheap wav for
tood namutacturers to make tood tiste good Brow-
nell. 20041 Young children consunme added wagars
well above recommended tevels. and adoles i e
constunng about double the recommended mounce

ot added sugars mchar diers {TOM. 20006

CONCLUSION

There 15 reason to be concerned that curvent pack-
age labels and advernsmy are nnsleading parenes and
children. The Dhietary: Guidehnes tor Amers s -

clude frune as an unportant part of 4 numtordlv-hal-

anced dier. [ris not the nmage of trie but acrual muanr
thar v healthy tor children. The packagine o rhese
products reminds people ot truir and s nurrnonal
value without delivermy the benetits. Hearh con-
scrous parents mav be drawn o products #it seem
healthier tor thew children, but cven parents = ho read
labels mav have o hard nme sdennfang aceal tran
content and determining the amount of suwir siney

added sweeteners are often Iisted  under  ntterent

names. Parenes mav find ditficuley m makme sense ot

the nusleading messages displaved on childro s tood

products. Parents deserve, and pubhic health cmpera-

Case4:09-cv-04456-SBA Documentl Filed09/22/09 Page32 of 35

aves require. packaging fat does not muslead con-
stners o thmkange thes are makmg healthy chowes

Food nmunuracturers - clear up this contusion
removing  mnleadimg anages and  statements o
packaging suci s allusions o true e products that
contamn licele o no e discontinuing adverosing ot
Ingithv-sweerened roods and beverages to children. ana
retormulatmg csstg oot and beverages to both ag-
IHTH‘.IH[|I\' k‘k"\ JERRANE .l\i\:ik‘\? Swedtenen (ll]d INCTCASC
ot vegetabies md witore grains.

Fhe nndings ot s soudv also suggest chat ther
LY be L mportant roie tor government regulaton
C urrent FDA yegulations on health clinms and producer
derimions such s those 1or fruat drinks are not suthi-
ety protecting parenrs and children: these regula-
nons need teooe updated o ensure the packaging
ciearlv states e coneerr on the cover. Farther, pare
ents and children would seassisted by requiring tha
added dietary sagars be mctuded on die nummoon races
panici.so thev can beteer understand how nich sweet-

cnet s i these produens
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TRADEMARK EXAMINING OPERATION PATENT OFFICE
WABHINGTON, D.C. ZRORS1

WASHINGTON .

r 1 Mailed D EC 4
Woodson, Pattishall & Ser. No.: 2
iicauliffe

1225 Uineteenth 3t. . . dpplicans: T
Washington, O. ©. 2003:
L - ARIK: C

The word 2IRHILZ 1s considerec
descriptive or deceptively misdescriptive
here and should ve disclaiwned apart Irom

4 search of the CIffice records

that the mark, when app_ led to applicant’'s

serial number, dos
and nome LM"

1367
83,072

e -.uaker Cats Company

(T T AT GTTIMTIT D
RUNCH LSuRRIZS

elther merely
ol the zoods

the nark shown.

Iails tc show

socds, is

confusingly similar toc any reglsterec nark.

ZXamine

DEreed:fel (lio 7-2876)

- _)w "Q’Q/L_\

A proper response to this Office action must be received within 6 months
B~ 7rom the date of this action in order to aveid ABANDONMENT.

GPO 907- 660

USCOMM-DC 8864-FPé&8
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